
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
626 GENEVA STREET 
LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY JUNE 17, 2019 - 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

Agenda 
   

1. Meeting called to order by Tom Hartz. 
 

2. Roll Call. 
 

3. Approve Minutes of the May 20, 2019 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 
  

4. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except 
for public hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 

5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. 
 

6. Downtown Design Review: 
 

a. Application by Brick & Mortar, Thomas and Kathy George, 3389 S. Shore Dr., Delavan WI 
53115, for the request to alter the exterior of the building by bringing the glass enclosed porches 
to grade on the property located at 832 Geneva St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, 
Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 
b. Application by Jodeen Mikkelsen, 217 S. Washington St, Elkhorn WI 53121 for the request to 

install an on Building Sign to the exterior of the property, located at 512 Broad St., in the 
Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZGD00005. 

 
c. Application by Erin Sasak, 772 W. Main St., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the request to install 

an on Building Sign to the exterior of the property, located at 772 W. Main St., in the Business 
Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00321. 

 

d. Application by Leanne Sanders Ieronimo, N2341 Shore View Dr., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for 
the request to install an on Building Sign and a Blade Sign to the exterior of the property, located 
at 235 Broad St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZA110300002. 

 
7. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend the existing Conditional Use Permit filed by Tristan 

Crist, 100 Skyline Dr., Lake Geneva, WI 53147,  to allow Commercial Outdoor Entertainment land use 
for the patio area which would allow the service of alcohol outside of the building. The property is 
located at 100 N Edwards Ave., located within the Planned Business (PB) zoning district, Tax Key No. 
ZA196100004. 

 
8. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit filed by Elizabeth 

Tomas, 1142 Cypress Point, Twin Lakes, WI 53181 for the property located at 617 W. Main St to allow 
outdoor music this request is for a Commercial Outdoor Entertainment land use, located in the Central 
Business (CB) zoning district. Tax Key No. ZOP00291. 



 
9. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by Tom and Denise 

Pecora, 911 Mason Ln., Lake in the Hills, IL 60156, for the installation of 90’ long 6’ wide pier and one 
boat slip located at1550 Lake Shore Dr., within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax 
Key No. ZLM00048. 

 
10. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by SCH Lake LLC, 131 

Dearborne St., Chicago, IL 60603 for the installation of 100’ long 8’ wide pier and two boat slip located 
at 700 S. Lake Shore Dr., within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. 
ZBB00007A. 

 
11. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by 

Samantha Strenger, 615 Center St., Lake Geneva WI, 53147 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging at 
695 Wells Street, located in the Planned Business District (PB) zoning, Tax Key No. ZOP00399C. 
 

12. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by 
Sarah Schultz, 448 McHenry St., Burlington, WI 53105, Rachael Thornton 3406 Harrison St, 
Kansasville, WI 53139 requesting to amend the existing CUP) to increase the allowance of 10 dogs to 
40 dogs at the existing building located at 846 Madison Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in 
General Industrial (GI) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZYUP00033. 

 
13. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend an application for a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) 

filed by Brian Dalton, 353 S. Lake St., Grayslake, IL 60030, requesting to allow Commercial Indoor 
Lodging at 406 Wells St. The originally approved PIP in 2013 limited the Commercial Indoor Lodging 
to 50 days (per the original applicant’s request). This request is to allow the land use as currently written 
in the zoning ordinances. The property is located at 406 Wells St., situated in Neighborhood Business 
(NB) zoning district Tax Key No. ZOP00353. 

 
14. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a General Development Plan (GDP) filed by 

Omega Homes – Vistas LLC., 210 E. O’Connor Dr, Suite 101, Elkhorn, WI 53121, requesting to allow 
the development 17.26 acre parcel to construct 58 single family lots which includes the installation of 
roads and infrastructure to accommodate the proposed development. The property is located on LaSalle 
St., situated in Multi-Family Residential – 8 (MR-8) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZA424700001. 
 

15. Discussions on Sign Display to review the reduction from 60 seconds to a 15 second change to the 
messages interval being displayed. 
 

16. Discussion on the Ice Castle concept plan and future event location. 
 

17. Discussion regarding opening the annual plan amendment process in conjunction with the ten-year 
update of the City of Lake Geneva’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 

18. Discussion/Action regarding recommendation for the Vandewalle and Associates feasibility analysis 
proposal dated June 11, 2019 to assist the City in preparing its vision for the future use of the Hillmoor 
Property.  
 

19. Adjournment. 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 
Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate 

Accommodations. 

Posted 6/13/2019 



1 of 4 

May 20, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, MAY 20, 2019 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order 6:00 p.m.  
 
Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Hartz, Alderman Doug Skates, John Gibbs, William Catlin, Ann Esarco. Absent (Excused) 
Michael Krajovic, Ted Horne. Also Present: City Planner Slavney, City Attorney Draper, Building and Zoning 
Administrator Walling. Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee. 
 
Approve Minutes of the April 15th Plan Commission meeting as distributed.  
Gibbs/Skates motion to approve.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes.  
 
Speaker #1: Jill Rodriguez, Lake Geneva resident, attended the Public Participation Workshop and shared her thoughts 
about the Workshop and hopes there are more opportunities to learn about the city’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Speaker #2: Sarah McConnell, Lake Geneva resident, was unable to attend the meeting but encourages the city to have 
more meetings available for public input. 
 
Speaker #3: Karen Gallow, Lake Geneva resident, asked for more opportunities for citizens to give input about the city’s 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Speaker #4: Scott Gelzer, Lake Geneva resident, attended the Public Participation Workshop, and shared his thoughts 
regarding the Workshop. 
 
Speaker #5: Carol Zimmerman, Lake Geneva resident, was unable to attend meeting but is in favor of having more 
meetings to build consensus for the city’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Speaker #6: Pete Peterson, 1601 Evergreen Lane, attended the Public Participation Workshop, shared his opinion 
regarding the Focus Groups and the Public Workshop, and encourages meetings for the residents. 
 
Speaker #7: Dick Malmin, N1991 S Lakeshore Drive, shared his opinion on the need for the Public Participation 
Workshops and emphasized the importance of updating the maps.  
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence. Correspondence was received from Patrick Lynch, 940 Maytag Road, regarding 
his PIP Applications for this evening. Correspondence has been distributed to the Plan Commission and the City Council. 
 
Downtown Design Review 
 
Application by The Board Shop/ Jason Rishling, 269 Broad St. Lake Geneva, for the request to install a Blade Sign 
to the exterior of the property, located at 269 Broad St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. 
ZOP00262. 
Jason Rishling, owner of The Board Shop, presented his request. 
Zoning Administrator Walling said the sign meets the standards for Downtown Design. 
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to approve the sign and include all staff recommendations. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin, Esarco “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



2 of 4 

May 20, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

Application by Candle Mercantile LLC., Elizabeth Doyle 1425 Rockbridge Ln. Lake Geneva & Leigh Ann Myers 
721 Governor Morrison St, Charlotte, NC 28211 for the request to install an on Building Sign and an Awning to 
the exterior of the property, located at 870 W. Main St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. 
ZOP00337. 
Elizabeth Doyle and Leigh Ann Myers, business owners, resented their request. Walling stated the sign and awning meets 
the standards for Downtown Design. 
 
Esarco/Skates motion to approve the signs and include all staff recommendations. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin, Esarco “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Application by Christopher Springer, 125 S. Kane St., Burlington, WI 53105, for the request to install an on 
Building Sign to the exterior of the property, located at 720 W. Main St. and to remove the existing awning and 
repaint the exterior of the building, in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00313. 
Christopher Springer, 125 S Kane St, Burlington, WI, presented his request. Walling said the sign and exterior color meets 
the Downtown Design Standards.  
 
Esarco/Skates motion to approve the signs and include all staff recommendations. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin, Esarco “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Application by Dimitrius Anagnos, 811 Wrigley Dr. Lake Geneva, for the request to install an employee only 
entrance to the exterior of the property, located at 811 Wrigley Dr., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, 
Tax Key No. ZA483300003. 
Dimitrius Anagnos, 811 Wrigley Dr, presented his request. Mayor Hartz asked if the steps shown in the plan layout were 
on the inside of building and Anagnos answered yes. 
 
Hartz/Catlin motion to approve the signs and include all staff recommendations. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin, Esarco “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Review and Recommendation of an application for Land Division Review – Plat of Condominium for McMurr II, 
LLC. 351W. Hubbard, suite 610. Chicago, IL 60654. To file the declaration and Plat of Condominium for the 
property located in the Summer Haven Subdivision on Lake Geneva Blvd. for the 4 dwelling units on Murry Dr., 
to create 4 buildable lots as identified on the certified survey map dated 4/2/2019 project no. 8868 prepared by 
Farris, Hansen & Associates Inc. for Tax Key No. ZSUM00001. 
Jim Howe, Godfrey Law Firm, representing McMurr II, presented the request. Attorney Draper asked if the use of road 
costs will be shared by both condo associations. Howe stated the use and cost of the roads will be shared by both 
associations. Howe said the 50-50 cost sharing will include maintenance of the roads, pool, pool house and any other 
amenities or common elements in the subdivision. 
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to approve the Plat of Condominium and include all staff recommendations. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin, Esarco “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Douglas Powell, 1014 W. Altgeld St., 
Chicago, IL 60614, for the installation and addition of 20’ long section of pier for a total length of 83’ located at 
1540 Lake Shore Dr., located within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZLM00047. 
Jeff, from Reed’s Construction, representing Douglas Powell, presented the request. Walling stated the request meets all 
setback requirements.  
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Skates/Esarco motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit contingent on DNR Approval and include all staff 
recommendations and fact finding in the affirmative. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin, Esarco “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



3 of 4 

May 20, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a General Development Plan (GDP) filed by Patrick & 
Rachel Lynch, 30715 Cedar Drive, Burlington, WI 53105, requesting to allow the razing and reconstruction of a 
new Single Family Home and to rebuild the structure closer to the lakeshore than the existing foundation. This 
request in addition would allow the new structure to be in-line with the neighboring dwellings. The property is 
located at 940 Maytag Rd., situated in Estate Residential (ER- 1) zoning district and to utilize the Single Family – 4 
(SR-4) setbacks, Tax Key No. ZCE00005. 
Hartz stated the City Council sent this request back to the Plan Commission with instructions to review the 4 homes to the 
northwest of 940 Maytag Road. Jason Bernard, Lake Geneva Architects, 201 Broad Street, representing Patrick & Rachel 
Lynch, presented additional information for the 4 homes northwest of the Lynch property. A discussion followed. Draper 
stated the Plan Commission uses a Planned Development process to look at each individual property and situation. 
 
Speaker #1: Dick Malmin, N1991 S Lakeshore Drive, shared his opinion on the state law and shoreline averaging. 
 
Speaker #2: Jerry Sommers, 930 Maytag Road, shared his concerns about water run-off and setbacks. 
 
Speaker #3: Patrick Lynch, 30715 Cedar Drive, Burlington, WI, shared information about WI law for averaging. 
 
Hartz/Skates motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to approve the General Development Plan and include all staff recommendations and fact finding in 
the affirmative. Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin voted “yes”, Esarco “abstained.”  Motion carried. 
 
Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by Patrick & 
Rachel Lynch, 30715 Cedar Drive, Burlington, WI 53105, requesting to allow the razing and reconstruction of a 
new Single Family Home and to rebuild the structure closer to the lakeshore than the existing foundation. This 
request in addition would allow the new structure to be in-line with the neighboring dwellings. The property is 
located at 940 Maytag Rd., situated in Estate Residential (ER- 1) zoning district and to utilize the Single Family – 4 
(SR-4) setbacks, Tax Key No. ZCE00005. 
Jason Bernard, Lake Geneva Architects, representing Patrick & Rachel Lynch, presented their request. Alderman Skates 
asked about the trees being removed and Hartz asked about the landscaping near shoreline. Bernard identified the trees 
and addressed the natural filter zone on the lakeside portion of property. Owner, Patrick Lynch, said he would work with 
the neighbors regarding the water drainage. 
 
Gibbs/Skates motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Gibbs/Catlin motion to approve the Precise Implementation Plan and include all staff recommendations and fact finding in 
the affirmative. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin, Esarco “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a (CUP) to Raze or 
Remove the existing building located at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central Business 
(CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 
 
Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 
 
Hartz/Skates motion to continue the Public Hearing to the June Plan Commission meeting at the request of the owner. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 of 4 

May 20, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the General Development Plan 
(GDP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a Planned 
Development to construct a 5600 square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, 
located in Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 
 
Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 
 
Hartz/Gibbs motion to continue the Public Hearing to the June Plan Commission meeting at the request of the owner. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Discuss the Public Participation Plan options for this process. 
 
Hartz/Esarco motion to recommend the City Council to approve additional funds to facilitate a second Comprehensive 
Plan Vision Workshop, Comprehensive Plan workshops with the aldermanic districts, and Comprehensive Plan focus 
groups with Spanish speaking citizens in an amount not to exceed $6,716. 
 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Catlin, Esarco “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to approve the draft Public Participation Strategy and Procedures for the Lake Geneva 
Comprehensive Plan 2019 with the additional four items discussed and recommend to the City Council. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
Consider resolution to adopt Public Participation Plan for Comprehensive Plan Update.  
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to recommend the adoption of Plan Commission Resolution 2019-1 of a Public Participation Plan for 
the Update of the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 Adjournment.  Gibbs/Esarco motion to adjourn at 7:52 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
        
/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to reconfigure 
the exterior of the building to in which will place the exterior deck area at grade elevation located at 832 
Geneva St. Tax Key No. ZOP00252.  
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 
Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Staff Recommendations:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the Alteration and installation request as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Thomas & Kathy George 
3389 S. Lake Shore Dr. 
Delavan, WI 53121 

Request: 
832 Geneva Street  
Downtown Design Review for Exterior 
Alterations 
Tax Key No. ZOP00252 

Agenda Item #6A 















 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install a sign 
to the exterior of the building located at 512 Broad St. Tax Key No. ZGD00005.  
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 
Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the Alteration and installation request as submitted. 
 

Applicant: 
Jodeen Mikkelsen 
217 S Washington St. 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 

Request: 
512 Broad St 
Downtown Design Review for Exterior Signage 
Tax Key No. ZGD00005 

Agenda Item #6B 







 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install a sign 
to the exterior of the building located at 722 Main St. Tax Key No. ZOP00321. 
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 
Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the Alteration and installation request as submitted. 
 
 

Applicant: 
Erin Sasak 
772 Main St 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
772 Main St. 
Downtown Design Review for Exterior Signage 
Tax Key No. ZOP00321 

Agenda Item #6C 















 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install a sign 
to the exterior of the building located at 325 Broad St. Tax Key No. ZA110300002. 
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 
Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the Alteration and installation request as submitted. 
 
 

 

Applicant: 
Leanne Sanders Ieronimo 
N2341 Shore View Dr. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
235 Broad St 
Downtown Design Review for Exterior Signage 
Tax Key No. ZA110300002 

Agenda Item #6D 







STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 
The applicant is submitting to “Amend” the original Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the 
Tristan Crist Magic Theater.  The original approval motion did not specify the “Outdoor 
Commercial Entertainment” that would allow them to utilize the patio for the service of alcoholic 
beverages.  
This was identified as lacking in the approval by the City Clerk when reviewing the Alcohol 
License Application. It was included in the original request, albeit not identified in the motion. 
The remainder of this staff report reflects the original approval from April 2018 without change. 
 
The subject property is located south of the Aldi’s grocery store and north of The Ridges multi-
family development on the west side of North Edwards Boulevard – across the street from 
Walmart. The property is located in an area with expired Planned Development zoning, with 
Planned Business (PB) as the baseline zoning district. The proposed theater is regulated as an 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment land use by the Zoning Ordinance, which requires a CUP in 
the PB District. A request to amend the Zoning Map from the old Planned Development back to 
the PB District was considered by the Plan Commission tonight, on the immediately preceding 
agenda item. 
The proposed theater would provide 150 seats, to be served by a parking lot with 52 stalls. This 
slightly exceeds the zoning ordinance requirement of 1 parking stall for every 3 seats. 
The proposed Building Elevations depict a main entrance with wall signage over the doors, at the 
northwest corner of the building. The building will be dominated by windows on its north (front) 
side and will include metal siding with concealed fasteners (per the Zoning Ordinance), and 
stone veneer. The look of the front elevation will wrap around to the east side of the building, 
which faces Edwards Boulevard. The metal and stone exterior materials will also be continued 
on the south and west sides of the building. 

Applicant: 
TC Productions LLC 
100 N. Edwards Blvd. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
Public Hearing & Recommendation to Amend 
the Conditional Use Permit for Indoor 
Commercial Entertainment to include   
Outdoor Commercial Entertainment for the 
Magic Theater at 100 North Edwards Blvd. 
Tax Key No: ZA196100004. 

  

Agenda Item #7 



The proposed Landscaping Plan exceeds the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. In addition 
to significant new landscaping, the Plan depicts the preservation of the existing plants located 
along the south property line. The depicted monument sign and wall sign also meet all 
requirements. 
The proposed Grading and Erosion Control Plan accommodates on-site stormwater management 
and also provides for the management of overland stormwater flows coming through the site 
from the southwest to the northeast. These plans have been carefully reviewed by City Staff and 
the City’s Engineering Consultant. 
Finally, in several of the submittal materials, the term “Phase 1” is used. This notation refers to 
the ability of the site to provide for expansion of the proposed building – most likely to the north. 
Such potential future expansion is not being proposed or reviewed at this time. 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review: 
The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
The project has been carefully designed to address the current state of rough grading on the 
property and existing overland stormwater flows, as well as proposed additional flow from this 
project. 
Staff notes that potential building expansion will be subject in any and all instances to Site Plan 
review by the Plan Commission. If said expansion involves an expansion of the Theater indoor 
commercial entertainment land use, a revised Conditional Use Permit will be required.  If said 
expansion involves one or more separate businesses, a new Conditional Use Permit will be 
required for a multi-tenant Group Development project. 
 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be all of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 



and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site 
plan, does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having 
jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden, on any improvements, facilities, utilities, or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 
such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be one or more of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site 
plan, does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having 
jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, 
and will impose an undue burden, on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 

adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 
such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed 
conditional use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided 
above. 

 







1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 
playing of music outside of the business which would require the issuance of a Commercial Outdoor 
Entertainment land use located in the Central Business (CB) zoning classification.  
In past applications for outdoor music the “restriction of amplified music” was identified in the motion.  
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 
 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

Applicant: 
Elizabeth Tumas 
1142 Cypress Point 
Twin Lakes, WI 53181 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
Allow for the Playing of outdoor music in the 
Central Business (CB) zoning district 
617 W. Main St. Tax Key No. ZOP00291 
 

Agenda Item: #8 



2 
 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 
by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 
uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 



3 
 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 
with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
 
 

 























1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 
installation of a pier which would require the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  
The proposed pier will be 90’ long 6’ wide with one boat slip 12’ x 34’ connected by a 6’ wide pier and 
5’ catwalk around the slip located at 1550 Lake Shore Dr. Tax Key No. ZLM00048. 
Approvals from the DNR have not been received, albeit they were submitted by the applicant to the 
DNR for review. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 
 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

Applicant: 
Tom & Denise Pecora 
911 Mason Ln. 
Lake in the Hills, IL 60156 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
Allow for a 90’ long 6’ wide Pier installation in 
the Estate Residential - 1 (ER-1) zoning district 
1550 Lake Shore Dr. Tax Key No. ZLM00048 
 

Agenda Item: #9 



2 
 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 
by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 
uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 
with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
 
 

 

 



























1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 
installation of a pier which would require the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  
The proposed pier will be 100’ long 8’ wide with a 20’ 8’ wide mooring and (2) 12’ wide 34’ long boat 
slips located at 700 S. Lake Shore Dr. Tax Key No. ZBB00007A. 
Approvals from the DNR have not be received, albeit they were submitted by the applicant to the DNR 
for review. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 
 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

Applicant: 
SCH Lake LLC 
131 South Dearborne St 
Chicago, IL 60603 
  

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
Allow for a 100’ long 8’ wide Pier and 2 – slips 
installed in the Estate Residential - 1 (ER-1) 
zoning district 700 South Lake Shore Dr.         
Tax Key No. ZBB00007A 
 

Agenda Item: #10 



2 
 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 
by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 
uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 
with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
 
 

 

 

 



























1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 
Commercial Indoor Lodging which is permitted in with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  
The applicant property will provide (3 lodgings) in the existing 3 apartments that will be utilized as the 
Commercial Indoor Lodging land use in addition the property has an existing Commercial Retail space 
on the first floor, at 695 Wells St. Tax Key No. ZOP00399C. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 
 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

Applicant: 
Samantha Strenger 
615 Center St. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
For Commercial Indoor Lodging in Planned 
Business (PB) zoning district 
695 Wells St. Tax Key No. ZOP00399C 
 

Agenda Item: #11 



2 
 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 
by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 
uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 
with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
 
 

 

 

 



























1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 
Commercial Animal Boarding which is permitted in with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  
The applicant property is requesting to provide animal boarding onsite; currently the property has an 
existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that allows the property to have 10 dogs onsite.   
The applicants are requesting to increase the animal count to 40 dogs at 846 Madison St. Tax Key No. 
ZYUP00033. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 
 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

Applicant: 
Sarah Schultz  
448 McHenry St  
Burlington, WI 53105 
   AND 
Rachael Thornton 
3406 Harrison St. 
Kansasville, WI 53139 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
For Commercial Animal Boarding in the  
General Industrial (GI) zoning district 
846 Madison St. Tax Key No. ZYUP00033 
 

Agenda Item: #12 



2 
 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 
by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 
uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 
with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
 
 































1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 
The applicant is submitting a request to amend the existing Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) that 
would allow for the Commercial Indoor Lodging to be utilized at this property as currently written.  
The existing Precise Implementation Plan request by the previous owners identified maximum of 50 day 
to be rented as a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility. This request would allow the current limit of 50 
days and increase the Commercial Indoor Lodging to 365 days if approved. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested IPP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed PIP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for PIPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 
 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Applicant: 
Kevin & Brian Dalton 
353 S. Lake St. 
Grays Lake, IL 60030 

Request: Amending Precise Implementation Plan 
(PIP) in the Planned Development (PD) zoning 
district 406 Wells St. Tax Key No. ZOP00353 

Agenda Item: #13 



2 
 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 
land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 



3 
 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) do not outweigh 
all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 
with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
 
 





 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page Description          PAGE 

Letter of Intent - Proposed Use, Activities, Landscape Plan .............................................. 1 

Example Rental Agreement ................................................................................................ 3 

Quiet Hours Signage ........................................................................................................... 7 

Location Map (Zoning Map) ................................................................................................ 8 

Map Showing Properties within 300 Feet ........................................................................... 9 

Map Showing Property Dimensions ..................................................................................10 

Aerial Map w/ Rental Properties Proximity to 406 Wells ..................................................11 

Survey of 406 Wells Street (Including Parking Spaces) ..................................................12 

Letter of Intent Susan Ekizian 2013 ..................................................................................13 

Plan Commission Minutes 08.19.13 .................................................................................14 

Council Minutes 08.26.13 ..................................................................................................19 

Ordinance No 13 -17 08.26.13 Zoning Map Amendment ................................................23 

Floorplan of 406 Wells St (4 Bedroom & 2 Bath) .............................................................24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Lake Geneva Council, 
 

We are proposing an amendment to the Precise Implementation Plan that the 
Council approved on Aug 26, 2013.  On Aug 26, 2013, 406 S. Wells Street was approved to 
allow for Commercial Indoor Lodging for up to 50 days per year. At the time, the owner 
desired to only rent for 50 days a year as she used the property as a primary residence in 
the non-summer months.  Please see her initial request on page 13.  We are requesting to 
extend the Commercial Indoor Lodging to as currently written in the zoning ordinance.  
 

On August 26, 2013, 406 S. Wells Street was rezoned from Neighborhood Business 
(NB) to Planned Development (PD).  Alderman Hougen said the ordinance was required to 
help facilitate the property owners request to operate a commercial lodging establishment. 
He also said it is an appropriate use for the parcel and it is in harmony with nearby 
properties.  The nearby properties include: 314 S. Wells St. (Maxwell Mansion) a historic 
hotel located directly across Baker Street from 406 S. Wells Street; 412 S. Wells Street 
(located two houses to the south of 406 S. Wells Street) a Commercial Indoor lodging 
establishment accepting renters 365 days/year; 414/416 Baker Street (located directly 
behind 406 S. Wells Street) a short term vacation rental; 335 Lakeshore Drive (located a half 
block from 406 Wells Street); 419 Cass Ave (located a block from 406 Wells Street across 
from the Maxwell Mansion); 415 S Lakeshore Drive (located behind 412 Wells Street); 429 S 
Lakeshore Drive (located a block from 406 Wells Street).  Please see the attached map on 
page 11 with the properties mentioned above circled to show the proximity to 406 S. Wells 
Street.  
 

On August 26, 2013 the Precise Implementation Plan filed by Susan Ekizian was 
approved to allow for Commercial Indoor Lodging at 406 S. Wells Street. Alderman Hougen 
said neighbors expressed concerns with the number of cars that would be parked at the 
property.  The concerns were made conditions for approval of the Precise Implementation 
Plan.  406 S. Wells Street was approved to have a maximum of 8 cars parked at the 
property.  The council approved the owner’s request that Commercial Indoor Lodging be 
allowed but limited to 50 days per year, as 50 days was the duration requested by the 
applicant.  Please see page 21 stating approval for Commercial Indoor Lodging at 406 S. 
Wells Street.  
 

My brother and I took ownership of the property on May 10, 2019.  Our intention is 
to continue to utilize the home as a short term vacation rental.   We have full intentions on 
keeping the home as it is viewed today.  We currently own two successful short term 
vacation rentals in the area that have over 300 five star reviews on short term rental listing 
websites.  We have never had an incident where a neighbor had a major complaint, or law 
enforcement had to be called, in our over 5 years as short term rental owners, with over 
300 groups of guests.  This can be attributed to our screening of prospective guests, the 
strict rules we have in place, and the signage inside the property. Please find attached on 
Page 7 a sign that is posted prominently in multiple locations inside the home.  Nearly all of 
the guests we have had are families with children on vacation or women’s getaway 
weekends.  
 

We have many processes in place to ensure the behavior of our guests is in line with 
neighborhood living.   Each renter receives a rental agreement that they must sign that 

1 



details the rules of renting the property, and the monetary consequences of failing to follow 
stated rules.  We have attached an example copy of the rental agreement that is used on 
page 3.  We speak to all prospective guests by telephone prior to their stay and reinforce to 
each guest that renting the home is a privilege we have as owners.  For each guest, we go 
over, in detail, the strict house rules that we have, and the respect each guest must pay to 
the surrounding businesses and homes.  We have been, and will continue to be, very 
selective of whom we rent to, as we take pride in our homes and in no way want our guests 
to become a nuisance to the community.  We have always targeted families coming to the 
area for a weekend or on summer vacation.  Bachelor, Bachelorette, Sorority, Fraternity, 
and Prom parties are strictly forbidden, as detailed in our rental agreement.   Kevin and I are 
frequently at the homes we own greeting and checking on guests, ensuring they are 
enjoying everything Lake Geneva has to offer.  We take swift action in an event our guests 
are not following the rules set forth, with immediate eviction as the first step. 

  
We plan to attract respectable parties at a higher price point than moderate hotels. 

We firmly believe that visitors to Lake Geneva desire a more intimate overnight stay at a 
home rather than a hotel.  The City of Lake Geneva will serve to benefit from the tourist 
dollar from the guests of the home.  The guests will primarily being shopping at the local 
stores and eating at the local restaurants that are all within walking distance from the home. 
The City of Lake Geneva will also benefit from the lodging tax that each guest pays for their 
stay.  
 

We feel that the home is capable of comfortably sleeping 12 guests with its four 
bedroom layout.  The home is a corner lot, with a hotel across the street, a business next 
door, a short term vacation rental two doors down, and a short term vacation rental behind 
the home as detailed above.  It is highly unlikely that a guest in the home will create a 
disturbance to a primary resident given the nature of the businesses surrounding the home 
and the strict rules we have in place. 
 

The previous owner provided a landscape buffer to the surrounding neighbors by 
installing a fence around the perimeter of the backyard, and to the side of the garage, the 
maximum square footage allowed by the city.  There will be no signage on the property 
advertising the home as a vacation rental, as we do not wish to create an eyesore for the 
neighbors.  
 

In closing, we plan to monitor the number of renters to our home in an initial phone 
interview.  We will inform the renters that we periodically stop by the property to check on 
how their stay is going and to monitor their respect to the community.  The noise ordinance 
rules of Lake Geneva will be prominently displayed in multiple locations inside the home, 
and agreed to in the signed rental agreement by each guest.  We will ensure that each guest 
has the utmost respect for the beautiful City of Lake Geneva.  Thank you for taking the time 
to consider the amendment request to the Precise Implementation Plan. 
 
 
Brian Dalton and Kevin Dalton 
 
 
 

2 



 
 

Baker St Bungalow Vacation Rental Agreement 
  

Our goal is to make your rental stay as enjoyable as possible, ensuring your fun, safety, and comfort at 
every opportunity.  We hope to make YOU feel at home, and hope you will treat our home as if it 
were your own! Thank you for choosing us.  We truly value and appreciate your business. 
  
This rental/booking agreement entered into via our various on-line services is hereby confirmed and 
agreed to, and is between KBM Rentals LLC (“the Owners”) and XXXXXX(“the Guest(s)), as named 
and signed at the end of this agreement.  
  
YOU NEED TO BE AT LEAST 25 YEARS OF AGE TO RENT THIS PROPERTY. THIS 
PROPERTY IS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FAMILY GATHERINGS, COUPLES GETAWAYS, 
GIRLFRIEND GETAWAYS, CHURCH OR CORPORATE RETREATS AND GOLF 
OUTINGS-NO AFTER PROM PARTIES, FRATERNITY OR SORORITY PARTIES 
ALLOWED!  
  
Reservation Information 
Guest – XXXXX 
Phone – XXXXX 
Email – XXXXX 
Unit – 406 Wells St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Dates – Arrival:  XXXXX Departure: XXXXX 
  
Rental – $XXX.XX 
Cleaning – $XXX.XX 
Tax - $XX.XX 
VRBO Service Charge – $XX.XX 
Total – $XXXX.XX 
  
Refundable Damage Deposit - $XXXX.XX 
  
The Guest and Owner, in consideration of the fees paid for the use of the property (which includes 
rent, fees, taxes, and damage insurance) as agreed and acknowledged herein, agree as follows: 
  
The Guest and Owner, in consideration of the fees paid for the use of the property (which includes 
rent, fees, taxes, and damage insurance) as agreed and acknowledged herein, agree as follows: 
  
Leased Property 
The Owner agrees to rent to the Guest the house, described as 406 Wells St, Lake Geneva, WI 
53147(the “Property”), for use as a residential premise only. 
  
The Guests may occupy the property only for the period as booked. 
  
Animals are not allowed at the property 

3 



  
 
Term of Rents 
In order to supply our guests with a clean unit and avoid delays, we ask that all guests abide by our 
check-in time of 4:00 p.m. and enjoy the morning of your departure with our relaxed check-out time 
of 11:00 a.m.  Arrangements can be made for early check in or late check out depending on unit 
occupancy before and after your stay. 
  
There is no need for us to give you keys to the property as you will gain access to the home with a 
unique four digit combination, which will be sent to you prior to check-in, and is changed upon each 
tenant’s departure. 
  
All bed linens and bath towels are provided for each guest, and beach towels are provided to take to 
the beach.  A washer and dryer are in the home for your use during your stay to refresh 
bath/kitchen/beach towels. A supply of toilet paper, paper towels, and garbage bags are provided 
along with housewares.  Kitchen items are available for your use.  Bath towels are not to be taken out 
of the property for use at the beach.  
  
The guest will pay the rent as agreed, but no later than 30 days prior to the booked dates. 
  
Security and Damage Fees 
You have elected to pay the $XXX refundable damage deposit.  The monies will be refunded to you 
within 7 days of your stay provided no damage occurs.  The security deposit is to protect the unit and 
its contents from malicious or negligent damage and/or the home being left in an abnormally dirty 
condition resulting in excessive cleaning costs (i.e. carpet/furniture stains, furniture damage, 
incomplete check-out procedures, broken or stolen items, etc.).  It is unlawful to remove items from 
the home. Such actions are grounds for prosecution.  It is the renter’s responsibility to report, upon 
arrival, any damages found and/or any repairs or maintenance needed by 9am the morning after your 
arrival to Brian Dalton at 708-362-0731.  You are responsible for any and all damages that occur to 
the property or its contents by you or any other member of your group while you are a registered 
renter of the property.  Should it be necessary to pursue legal action against the renter, the renter will 
be responsible for any and all attorney and court costs.  
  
Governing Law 
This rental/booking agreement will be construed in accordance with and exclusively governed by the 
laws of the State of Wisconsin. 
  
Cancellation Policy 
Reservation may be cancelled no later than 30 days prior to your arrival date to receive a full refund 
of monies paid.  If you cancel greater than 14 days from your arrival but less than 30 days you will 
receive a 50% refund of monies paid.  If you cancel less than 14 days prior to your stay there is no 
refund. 
  
Parking/Smoking/Large Gatherings 

4 



The Guests are entitled to the use of parking available on the driveway of the Property (8 spots total). 
No trailers or other recreational type vehicles are allowed overnight parking.  These type of vehicles 
must be kept off the premises. 
  
The Guests must not smoke anywhere in the Property nor permit any other guests or visitors to smoke 
in the Property.  Any extra cleaning charges, including but not limited to carpet, furniture, draperies or 
bedding, because of smoking, will be charged a minimum of $250.00. 
  
The property may not be used for any large gatherings of any kind.  These limits and policies are 
strictly enforced.  Exceeding above stated occupancy is grounds for immediate eviction with loss of 
rental fees and entire security deposit. 
  
Quiet Time/Residential Purposes 
There is a noise curfew of 10pm. The premises shall be used for residential purposes only.  Renters 
shall peacefully and quietly occupy the premises and shall not interfere with the rights of our 
neighbors.  
  
Renting this home is a privilege that we have as owners.  If, as a renter, your actions or conduct cause 
a disturbance, you may be subject to fines and/or eviction from the property.   If the police have to be 
called, you and your party will be immediately evicted, without recourse or refunds. 
  
Phone/Cable/Wifi 
Our home has no land line phone.  Please use your cell phone during your stay.  Cable and Wifi will 
be provided during your stay, and the Wifi password will be provided. 
  
Repairs 
Appliances, toilets, heating/air conditioning systems and all mechanicals are continuously checked 
and kept maintained.  However, we cannot guarantee a mechanical may not malfunction during your 
stay.  We make every effort to have repairs made as quickly as possible.  No refunds can be made for 
failure or damage, but please report any issues as soon as possible so they may be addressed/corrected 
as quickly as possible during your stay. 
  
Housekeeping 
The home will be ready for you upon check-in and will be cleaned after you depart.  If you require 
additional cleaning during your stay or a mid-week clean and tidy, please contact us.  
  
Lost/Forgotten Items 
Although we are not responsible for forgotten personal items, we will, to the best of our ability, 
attempt to help recover any lost or forgotten items left at the unit.  Renter should report items as soon 
as possible. Shipping costs will be the responsibility of the renter.  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5 



  
  
  
 
Owners Signature_____________________________________ Date _____________________ 
  
  
  
Guests Signature______________________________________ Date ______________________ 
  
  
  
Primary Renter Cell Phone Number _________________________________ 
  
  
  
Looking forward to working with you! 
  
Brian Dalton 
(708) 362-0731 

406wells@gmail.com  
  

DAMAGE/INJURY CLAUSE 
  
Renter accepts full responsibility for any damages to the rental premises during the rental duration. 
The renter’s liability includes, but are not limited to: theft and/or damage to the furnishings and 
interior items excluding normal wear and tear.  Owner/Manager are not liable for any damages to the 
above rental property and any accident or injury that may occur during the renter’s occupancy at the 
unit.  Renter must adhere to policies and procedures.  Owner/manager take no responsibility for the 
renter’s actions. 
  
  
  
Owners Signature________________________________ Date _____________________ 
  
  
  
Guests Signature_____________________________ ___ Date ______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 



 

 
QUIET TIME IS 

10PM-7AM 
 

PLEASE 
RESPECT OUR 
NEIGHBORS! 

7 



SK
Y

L A

VI
ST

A 
DR

EL
M

 S
T

M
IL

L
S

T

CASS ST

HY 50

RUSH ST

EAGLE DR

CO
O

K
 S

T OA K
LA

LINDA LA

W
ES

T 
ST

EA
S

T
 S

T

BAKER ST

RO
M

IN
R

D

R
ID

G
E

 R
D

B
A

D
G

E
R

 L
A

ANN ST

H
IG

H
 S

T

GARDNER ST

ROGERS CT

WALKER ST

SK
YLINEDR

M

AYTAG RD

CONANT ST

CEYLON
CT

W MAIN ST

HENRY ST

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

 A
V

TO
M

IK
E 

ST

W
RIGLEY

DR

BAYVIEW
DR

GRANT ST

C
A

R
EY

 S
T

GEORGE ST

M
AX

W
EL

L 
ST

W
B

A
RR

Y

DR

R
O

LL
IN

G
 L

A

HIGHLAND WAY

MADAUS ST

H
AR

M
ON

Y
DR

BALLAD DR

O
RC

HA

RD LA

N JO S
H

U
A

LA

WISCONSIN ST

W
EST D

R

EBARR Y
D

R

M
AR

SH
A

LL
 L

A

EUGENE DR

LO
O

K
O

U
T 

D
R

BRIAR RIDGE ST

WA LC
OWIS DR

M
O

B
IL

E 
ST

A
LL

EN
DA

LE
 S

T

BO
N

N
IE

 B
RA

E 
LA

C
U

M
B

E
R

LA
N

D
TR

SA
G

E 
ST

GRAN
D

V
IEW

D
R

REEDSV
ILLE DR

MAP

LE S
T

EL
M

W
O

O
D 

AV

N KNOLL LA

HOST DRS KNOLL LA

PARK DR

S
ID

N
EY

SM
ITH

L
A

E
A

S
T

 D
R

LAKE FOREST LA

MARSHALL ST

BEETHO VE
N

DR

CANON DR

PLEASANT ST

PINE TREE LA

LA SALLE ST

CE
N

TE
R

 S
T

W
IL

M
O

T 
B

LV
D E SOUTH ST

H
IDD

EN
VALL

E

Y LA

ED

GEWOOD DR

C
E

N
T

E
R

 S
T

W MAIN ST

TOWNLINE RD

SUE ANN DR

WALWORTH ST

H
U

D
SO

N
TR

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
PK

W
Y

PARK
DR

PE
A

R
SO

N
 D

R

INTERCHANGE NORTH

FO
R

E
S

T
 S

T

FO
RE

ST
R

ES
T

LA

LA
K

E 
G

EN
EV

A 
BL

VD

OAK TER

C
ADENCE CIR

MA
ESTROCIR

HU
N

T
C

LU
B

LA

SCHAITEL RD

W
E

S
T

 S
ID

E
 R

D

P
E

LL
E

R
 R

D

W SOUTH ST

DODGE ST

G

ARRISON DR

B
O

W
IN

G
W

A

YLAGRANGE DR

LO
CK

W
O

O
D

BL
VD

EB HY 12

C
U

R
T

IS
 S

T
W

ELLS ST

G
A

LL A
N

T

DR

SOUTHWIN
D

DR

SO
NATA WAY

S
LA

K
E

SH
O

R E
DR

E MAIN ST

W
ELLS ST

CO
UN

TRY CLUBDR

CEMETERY RD

HY 50

KRUEGER RD

LO
R

AM
O

O
R

DR

CTY TK H

SN
AK

E
RD

S STONE R ID
G

E
D

R

N EDWARDS
BLVD

S
LA

K
ESH

O
R

E
D

R
W

ILLIA
M

S
ST

HY 50

N
O

R
T

H
 R

D

C
TY

TK
N

N

TOWNLINE RD

E
D

W
A

R
D

S
 B

LV
D

S LAKESHORE DR

S
P

R
IN

G
 C

R
E

E
K

 R
D

GENEVA PKWY

HY 120

N BLOOMFIELD RD

EB HY 12

CTY TK H

W

B
HY

12

W
B HY 12

W
H

IT
E

 P
IG

E
O

N
 R

D

WILLOW RD

P
IL

G
R

IM
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 R

D

HY 120

HY
120

EB HY 12 WB HY 12

SHERIDAN SPRINGS RD

ER-1

SR-3

NO

SR-4

SR-4

TR-6

TR-6

TR-6

TR-6

TR-6

MR-8

CB

ER-1

PB

RH

RH

NO

PD

NB

SR-3

SR-4

MR-8

GB

NB

NO

PB

RH

PBP

PB

PD

NB

GB

PB

SR-4

ER-1

RH

GI
PD

PD

GB

GI

SR-3 PB
PD

PB

NB

PB

PD

RH

PD

NC

SR-4

RH

CR-5

SR-4

PI

PI

RH

PD

PB

PD

SR-4

ER-1

PD

SR-4

RH

RH

SR-4

ER-1

SR-4

RH
RH

RH

RH

PI

PD

GI

PO

PO

SR-4

PB

RH

MR-8

RH

TR-6

PI

MR-8

C-2

TR-6

RH

MR-8

RH

PD
PD

TR-6

PBP

MR-8

CB

CB

CB

CB

ER-1

CB

PD

SR-4

ER-1

PD

CB

SR-4

TR-6

PD

Geneva
Lake

Resource Conservation District

Central Business

Countryside Residential - 5AC

Estate Residential -1

General Business

General Industrial

Heavy Industrial

Multi-family Residential-8

Neighborhood Business

New Commercial

Neighborhood Office

Planned Business

Planned Business Park

Planned Development

Planned Industrial

Planned Office

Rural Holding

Single-family Residential-3

Single-family Residential-4

Two-family Residential-6

ST O N EY B R OO K T R

BOULDERRID GE CT

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500
Feet

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1
Miles ICity of Lake Geneva

Zoning Map on Aerial Background

BRIAN DALTON
23

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
8



5/5/2019 Walworth County, WI - OneView

https://gisinfo.co.walworth.wi.us/oneview/ 1/1

0 200 400ft

+
–

X

rent scale

intout
.wi.us/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisjobs/printtask/exportwebmap_gpserver/j54823d7da43044a2b806dcd87c268f8c/scratch/d329e07305aa4e83bd4450c19d262537.pdf)

∧

 Walworth County, WI ‑ OneView
Help    Employee LoginResources

()

Search for a Parcel or Address

https://gisinfo.co.walworth.wi.us/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisjobs/printtask/exportwebmap_gpserver/j54823d7da43044a2b806dcd87c268f8c/scratch/d329e07305aa4e83bd4450c19d262537.pdf
https://gisinfo.co.walworth.wi.us/oneview/
BRIAN DALTON
24

BRIAN DALTON

�

BRIAN DALTON
9



 



BRIAN DALTON
26

BRIAN DALTON

�

BRIAN DALTON

�

BRIAN DALTON
11



27

Parking Space 1

Parking Space 2

Parking Space 3

Parking Space 4

Parking Space 5

Parking Space 6

Parking Space 7

Parking Space 8

BRIAN DALTON

�

BRIAN DALTON
12



BRIAN DALTON
29

BRIAN DALTON
28

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
13

BRIAN DALTON



BRIAN DALTON
29

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
14



BRIAN DALTON
30

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
15



BRIAN DALTON
31

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
16



BRIAN DALTON
32

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
17



BRIAN DALTON
33

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
18



BRIAN DALTON
34

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
19



BRIAN DALTON
35

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
20



BRIAN DALTON
36

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
21



BRIAN DALTON
37

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
22

BRIAN DALTON
22



BRIAN DALTON
38

BRIAN DALTON

BRIAN DALTON
23



BRIAN DALTON
39

BRIAN DALTON


BRIAN DALTON
24



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 
The applicant is submitting a request to for a General Development Plan (GDP) that would allow for the 
construction of 58 single family homes. 
The step 3 of the Planned Development process is identified as the General Development Plan (GDP) in 
which this process the applicant is to give an outline to the proposed development that is identifying the 
scope of work for the development. 

“This project has outstanding issues related to the City Water Tower that needs to be raised to an 
elevation that can supply adequate water pressures and fire flows”. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested GDP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed GDP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for GDPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 
 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

Applicant: 
Omega Homes-Vistas LLC 
210 O’Connor Dr. 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 

Request: General Development Plan (GDP) in the 
Multi-Family Residential -8 (MR-8) zoning 
district Tax Key No. ZA424700001 

Agenda Item: #14 



2 
 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 
1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 
safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 
result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 
land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 
served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) do not outweigh 
all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed General 
Development Plan (GDP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in 
agreement with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
 
 

 

















































































 
 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 

 

To: The City of Lake Geneva 

From: Mike Slavney, FAICP, City Planning Consultant 

Date: February 5, 2018 

Re: Reduction in the Requirement for Static Messages in Changeable Message Signs 

 

In preparation for our discussion of the static message requirement, I want to provide some 
background information about the current requirement of 60 seconds in the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Current Regulation 

1. “Flashing Signs” are currently prohibited by the sign ordinance. “Flashing” is defined as a 
change of appearance more than once any 60 seconds.  As a result, any message displayed on 
any sign in the City (except time and temperature) must be static and may only change every 
60 seconds. 

2. Electronic message signs are only permitted with a Conditional Use Permit. Very few have 
been issued, and all must comply with the 60 second rule. 

 
These two rules have been in place since the Zoning Ordinance rewrite in 1997-1998. 
 
During the ordinance rewrite, the public, plan commission and council were in accord about 
protecting the small city character of the community in areas located away from the two Highway 12 
interchanges. The 60 second display rule originated out of that goal of the 1992 Comprehensive 
Plan. This goal has continued as a focal point of the 1999, and 2009 Comprehensive Plans. Most 
communities in Wisconsin require a time delay, but a delay of less than 60 seconds. The requested 
15 seconds is common, although Fontana also uses the 60 second requirement. 
 
Please note that I believe the City’s Zoning Ordinance cannot successfully defend applying the 15 
seconds display to only the “City’s library”.  Even if the City limited the 15 second requirement to 
only Indoor Institutional land uses, I believe it would be very difficult to defend such an exception 
based on aesthetic or safety purposes. 
 
As an alternative, I think the City could require that a reduction of the 60 second timing could be 
limited for sign locations that are well-separated from street intersections, crosswalks, and driveways. 
This would be a safety-based regulation. However, the presence of a more rapidly changing message 
at any location in the City will likely be perceived as the new rule, and will likely be quickly used by 
many owners of electronic message signs throughout the community. 



 
 

 
LIBRARY OUTDOOR DIGITAL SIGN 

 
 
The Lake Geneva Public Library installed an outdoor digital color LED sign in June, 2018. This 
was intended to increase public awareness of library programs and events, as well as 
resources and services available to residents and guests of Lake Geneva. At that point in time 
the library had significantly increased its programs and activities and was receiving requests 
from the public for more information in a variety of formats about library events.  
 
The current City or Lake Geneva ordinance allows display of a “slide” for 60 seconds 
minimum. This limits the number of events that are shown to any given number of pedestrians 
or passers by, and a single slide (generally 3 lines of text, under 10 words) remains on display 
for a relatively long time. Most people are able to view a single program displayed on the 
sign.  
 
The sign was a significant investment for the library and the library board voted to propose 
reducing the slide display time to 15 seconds to the City of Lake Geneva, in order to increase 
the effectiveness of the sign messaging. The library sign only promotes library programs and 
events open to all residents and visitors, or, City messages relevant to all residents. Messages 
are text, static, and video is not used. At 15 seconds, most cars passing would not see a 
change in the slide unless stopped at a light, so this time period was set to try to compromise 
between displaying more slides and not reducing current safety standards at the intersection 
of Main & Wrigley.  
 
 

Lake Geneva Public Library  |   918 W Main Street  |  Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
262-249-5299  |  lakegene@lakegeneva.lib.wi.us 























 
 

120 East Lakeside Street • Madison, Wisconsin 53715 • 608.255.3988 • 608.255.0814 Fax  

342 North Water Street • Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202  • 414.421.2001 • 414.732.2035 Fax  

www.vandewalle.com 

 

Shaping places, shaping change  

To: City of Lake Geneva 

From: Mike Slavney, FAICP, City Planner 

Date: 10 June 2019 

Re: Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process 

The City adopted the Comprehensive Plan on December 14, 2009. To provide a manageable, 
predictable, and cost-effective process, the City has established a plan amendment cycle every year. 
This will be done in conjunction with the 2019 Comprehensive Plan Update currently underway.  
 
Several Wisconsin communities use an annual plan review and amendment process cycle to ensure 
these evaluations and adjustments are handled in a predictable and efficient manner.  
 
The procedures to adopt or amend a Plan are defined under Section 66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes.  
The City process needs to follow these requirements. The timeline on the following page presents a 
conceptual process to allow for plan amendment requests, consider amendments, and go through 
the remaining Plan Update and adoption procedures in compliance with the State Statutes. The 
Comprehensive Plan Update will be adopted by the end of 2019.  

This approach features a combined meeting of the Plan Commission and Common Council.   

During the meeting: 

1. the Common Council holds a Public Hearing on the requested Plan amendments; 

2. the Plan Commission considers Plan amendment requests and public testimony, and then 
adopts a resolution making a specific recommendation on each of the requested Plan 
amendments to the Common Council; and, 

3. the Common Council considers the Plan Commission’s recommendations, vote on motions 
for each requested Plan amendment, and finally, adopts an ordinance to officially adopt the  
Plan amendments per their individually voted motions. 

 
This combined meeting approach allows for the Plan Commission and Council to hear the same 
public testimony, prior to the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and the Council’s actions. 
 

  

http://www.vandewalle.com/


10 June 2019  Page 2 

Ten-Year Comprehensive Plan Update Timeline 
 Incorporating the Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process  

Items shaded in grey are related to the Annual Comprehensive Plan  
Amendment Process. Dates subject to change. 

 

 
 

 

Task Description Date

P Kickoff Meeting with City Staff  January 21

P Project Kickoff with Plan Commission and City Council April 8

P Stakeholder Interviews & Focus Groups May 14

P Community Vision Workshop #1 May 15

P Adopt Public Participation Plan May 27

Plan Commission Meeting to Open Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment Process
June 17

City Clerk Accepts Plan Amendment Nominations  June 18-July 31

Additional Public Outreach mid July

Plan Commission Meeting to Review Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment Nominations  
August 19

Plan Commission Meeting to Review Draft #1 of 

Comprehensive Plan Update and Continue Review of 

Amendment Nominations  

September 16

Approved Amendments Incorporated into Draft 

Comprehensive Plan
September 17-30

Draft Comprehensive Plan Open House October

Plan Commission Recommends Setting Public Hearing October

Council Sets Public Hearing (approx. 6 weeks ahead) October

City Clerk Distributes Draft Plan to Surrounding 

Jurisdictions
October

30-Day Review Period ~ November 1-30

Committee of the Whole Review of Draft Plan December 2

Joint City Council and Plan Commission Public Hearing and 

Adoption of Comprehensive Plan
December 9

City Clerk Distributes Adopted Comprehensive Plan to 

Surrounding Jurisdictions
After Adoption



 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application Form Page 1 of 2 
 

City of Lake Geneva  
 Amendment to the Comprehensive Plan 

APPLICATION FORM 

 
PETITION:    I, __________________________________________ hereby petition the City of Lake 
Geneva consider the following request for amendment to the Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan:  
 
Please check those that apply: 

________     Future Land Use Map (Map 5) 

________ Other Maps (Transportation Facilities Map, etc.) 

________ Text Amendment (policies, programs, etc.) 

________ Other 

 
Name of Applicant: 
Person(s) or Firm 

 

Address:  

Daytime Telephone:  

Email or Fax:  

Property Owner Name and 
Address:  
If different from applicant 

 

Description of Property, Parcel 
Number, or Street Address: 
If request is related to a particular 
property 

 
 
 
 
 

Summary of the Proposed 
Amendment Request: 
Please describe here (or on a 
separate sheet) your specific 
request for a Comprehensive Plan 
amendment. Provide any necessary 
maps or supporting data as 
needed, including conceptual 
development plans, if applicable.  

 

Present Zoning: 
If applicable 

 

Future Proposed Use: 
Attach additional pages and/or 
concept plan as appropriate. 

 



 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application Form Page 2 of 2 
 

The Lake Geneva Plan Commission will consider the following criteria when making 
recommendations regarding amendments to the Comprehensive Plan. Please respond to the 
following questions:  
 
If additional space is needed for your response, please attach additional sheets to this form. 
 

1.  How will the proposed amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan benefit the public, City, and/or 
surrounding neighbors or neighborhoods? 

 
 
 
 
 

2. How does the request advance the goals, objectives 
and policies of the Comprehensive Plan? 
 

 

3.  As it affects the amendment request, what 
circumstances have changed or what new information 
is now available since the 2009 adoption of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, or in the case of a previously 
requested amendment, what circumstances have 
changed since the last amendment request? 
 

 
 
 
 

4.  Is there any additional information that the City of 
Lake Geneva should consider in its evaluation of this 
request? 

 
 
 
 
 

 
The deadline for requests to amend the Comprehensive Plan is Wednesday, July 31, 2019 at 4:00 p.m.  

Requests shall be submitted to City Hall or via email to bzclerk@cityoflakegeneva.com. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________   ________________, 2019 
Signature of Applicant   Date 
 
 



120 East Lakeside Street • Madison, Wisconsin 53715 • 608.255.3988 • 608.255.0814 Fax 

247 Freshwater Way, Suite 530 • Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204 • 414.988.8631 

www.vandewalle.com 

Shaping places, shaping change 

June 11, 2019 

Agreement for Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis Services 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the “Client” City of Lake Geneva, 
Wisconsin, and VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES, Inc., Madison, Wisconsin, a professional planning 
and design firm. For purposes of this Agreement, the “Project” is defined as assisting the City in 
preparation of Feasibility Analysis of the Hillmoor Property.  

Article I Scope of Work 

A. VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES agrees to provide the following “Services”: 

Task 1: Site Visit & Site Analysis 

       1.1 Site Visit/Kickoff Meeting 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES staff (up to three team members) will 
participate in a one-day site visit to investigate the on-site and surrounding 
conditions of the Hillmoor Property to develop a more thorough 
understanding of the site conditions and gather additional background 
information from City Staff and Elected Officials.  This information will be 
used to inform the Opportunity Analysis task and build a better 
understanding of the historic and on-going discussions of development 
options for the site. 

http://www.vandewalle.com/


VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES     City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 2 

Up to two members of the design team will also meet with City Staff and key 
stakeholders during this trip to discuss project goals and timelines. 

1.2 Preliminary Base Map Creation  

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will work with the City to develop base 
information regarding the site and adjoining properties for use in the 
creation of the master plans. 

1.3 Site Analysis 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will undertake an initial site analysis of the 
target property using publicly available information as part of a pre-screening 
review. Items investigated may include, but are not limited to: 

a. Existing Conditions (topography, soils, wetlands, floodplains, water; 
features, streams, lakes, woodlands, existing improvements); 

b. Adjoining Properties (uses, ownership patterns); 
c. Municipal regulations (adopted plans, zoning) 

 
Deliverables: Initial Site Analysis; Estimate of Development Potential (value of developable acreage); Summary of 

Development Character & Property Assets 
 

Task 2: Project Example Tour 

2.1 Project Example Tour 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will lead a one-day bus tour of the Madison 
region to see example neighborhoods and explore successful development 
options.  This tour will showcase existing built examples of different 
elements that could be incorporated into the Hillmoor site. Developments 
visited during this provides tour attendees an opportunity to review on-site 
conditions and configurations and development formats, as well as discuss 
program development, implementation strategies, and project opportunities 
and challenges.  
 

The City will be responsible for invitations, renting the bus(es), and meal costs. 
 

 

 

 



VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 3 

Task 3: Opportunity Analysis & Concept Plan/Program Development 

3.1 Opportunity Analysis 

Informed by the existing site conditions, VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will 
develop an analysis of the environmental constraints & opportunities, 
preservation opportunities, development potential, and regional development 
patterns/transportation opportunities for the property as it relates to the 
future reuse of the site. The resulting opportunity analysis summary will look 
at general development patterns, character opportunities, and key site 
components.  

3.2 Concept Master Plans 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will create up to three conceptual master 
plan/Program Development Concepts for the development of the target 
parcel, based upon information gained during the site analysis phases and 
program goals for the project. 

3.3 Public Engagement Event 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will organize a public workshop/ open house 
and interactive charette event for the community to review the draft 
concept plans and gather input.   

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will provide a meeting flyer. The City will be responsible for distribution of the 
flyer and additional publicity. 

3.4 Concept Refinement & Project Valuation 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will undertake one round of revisions to the 
Concept Master Plans and develop preliminary valuations for the 
development scenarios. 

  VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will provide all deliverables in digital format (PDF). 

Optional Task 4: Preferred Development Scenario Master Plan 

4.1 Preferred Development Scenario Selection 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will work with the City through a facilitated    
process to identify the preferred alternative to develop a refined Master Plan. 



VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES     City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 4 

4.2 Draft Master Plan Alternatives 

Refine and render one detailed Preferred Development Scenario Master 
Plan, with calculated lot counts, and amount of parks/open space and 
stormwater basins needed.  

4.3 Draft Master Plan Open House 

Create presentation to explain the concept behind the project development 
and display graphics to the public. Show project photo examples of the 
different types of uses in the development (residential, commercial, mixed-
use, parks, open space, stormwater). Present PowerPoint to the public at an 
Open House in Lake Geneva. 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will provide a meeting flyer. The City will be responsible for distribution of the 
flyer and additional publicity. 

 

 4.4 Master Plan Revisions 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will undertake one round of revisions to the 
Preferred Development Scenario Master Plan and develop preliminary 
valuations for the refined development scenarios. 

 VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES will provide all deliverables in digital format (PDF). 

B. Additional Services, beyond those stated in Article I.A., may be provided through a 
formal amendment, as approved by City Counsel.  

C. VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES agrees to provide its professional Services in 
accordance with generally accepted standards of its profession. 

Article II Client’s Responsibilities 

A. Client agrees to provide VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES with all base maps, blueprints, 
aerial photos, studies, reports, and ordinances needed to complete these Services. 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES may reasonably rely on the accuracy and completeness 
of these items. Client agrees to provide these items and to render decisions in a 
timely manner so as not to delay the orderly and sequential progress of 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES Services. 



VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES     City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 5 

B. The administrative liaison between VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES and the Client will 
be Tom Hartz, Mayor. 

C. Client agrees that the following individuals are approved to authorize Additional 
Services via a Work Order:  

D. Client understands that any work product delivered in electronic form under this 
Agreement may require Client to use certain third-party hardware and/or software 
products. Client shall be solely responsible for obtaining licenses to use such third-
party software. VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES makes no warranties or representations 
as to the quality, capabilities, operations, performance or suitability of any third-party 
hardware or software including the ability to integrate with any software currently in 
use by the Client. Client acknowledges that the quality, capabilities, operations, 
performance, and suitability of any third-party hardware or software lies solely with 
Client and the vendor or supplier of that hardware or software. 

E. If Client makes any modifications to Deliverables, Client shall either 1) obtain the 
prior written consent of VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES; or 2) remove VANDEWALLE 

& ASSOCIATES name from the Deliverables. In the event that Client selects option 
#2, VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES shall not be liable or otherwise responsible for 
such modifications or their effect on the results of the implementation of the 
recommendations contained in such Deliverables. 

Article III Estimated Schedule 

A. Services in this Agreement shall commence from June 11, 2019 and be in effect for 
five months, unless the parties agree otherwise. 

B. VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES shall render its Services as expeditiously as is 
consistent with professional skill and care. During the course of the Project, 
anticipated and unanticipated events may impact the Project schedule and 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES shall not be responsible for any delays caused by 
factors beyond its reasonable control. 



VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES     City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 6 

Article IV Costs and Payment 

A. All work will be completed on a time and materials basis with the budget for the 
Task 1 -3 of the Project not to exceed $43,000. All work for the Task 4 will be 
completed on a time and materials basis with the budget for the task not to exceed 
$30,000. Client acknowledges that significant changes to the Project schedule, budget 
or Project’s scope may require Additional Services for which the parties may (but are 
not required to) enter into a separate Work Order (see Article I.B.). 

B. VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES shall send Client an invoice for Professional Fees and 
Reimbursable Expenses once a month. Client shall pay VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES 
the amounts due under such invoice upon receipt of such invoice. A service charge 
of 1.5 % per month may be charged on all amounts more than 30 days after date of 
invoice. 

Article V Termination 

A. Either Client or VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES may terminate this Agreement upon 
seven days written notice.  

B. If terminated, Client agrees to pay VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES the hourly rates for 
all Services rendered and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, up to the date of 
termination. 

C. Upon not less than seven days’ written notice, VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES may 
suspend the performance of its Services if Client fails to pay VANDEWALLE & 

ASSOCIATES in full for Services rendered or Reimbursable Expenses incurred. 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES shall have no liability because of such suspension of 
service or termination due to nonpayment. 

Article VI Dispute Resolution 

VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES and Client agree to mediate claims or disputes arising 
out of or relating to the Agreement. The mediation shall be conducted by a 



VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES     City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 7 

mediation service acceptable to the parties. A demand for mediation shall be made 
within a reasonable time after a claim or dispute arises. In no event shall any demand 
for mediation be made after such claim or dispute would be barred by the applicable 
law. 

Article VII Intellectual Property; Confidentiality 

A. Except as otherwise provided by law: upon payment in full by Client to 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES for Services rendered and Reimbursable Expenses 
incurred pursuant to this Agreement, VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES shall grant Client 
a non-transferable, non-exclusive, perpetual license to use any and all Work Product 
developed or produced by VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES pursuant to this 
Agreement. As used in this Agreement, “Work Product” means all inventions, 
processes, data, documents, drawings, records, and works of authorship, whether or 
not copyrightable or patentable, that are originated or prepared by VANDEWALLE & 

ASSOCIATES in the course of rendering the Services under this Agreement. Until 
Client pays VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES in full for Services rendered and expenses 
incurred pursuant to this Agreement, Client may not use any Work Product to 
complete the Project with others unless VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES is in material 
breach of this Agreement. 

B. Except as otherwise provided by law: Client shall not communicate, publish, or 
otherwise disclose to a third party or authorize or induce anyone else to use, 
communicate, publish, or otherwise disclose, any nonpublic information pertaining 
to VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES, including, without limitation, any information 
relating to pricing, products, or ideas of VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES. Until 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES is paid in full by Client for Services rendered and 
expenses incurred pursuant to this Agreement, Client shall not communicate, 
publish, or otherwise disclose to any third party, any information pertaining to or 
summaries of the Work Product.  

Article VIII Miscellaneous Provisions 

A. Wisconsin law governs this Agreement (without regard to its conflict of law 
principles or rules of construction concerning the draftsman hereof). 



VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES     City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 8 

B. This Agreement is the entire and integrated agreement between the Client and 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES, and supersedes all prior negotiations, statements or 
agreements, either written or oral, with regard to its subject matter. This Agreement 
may be amended only by written instrument signed by both Client and 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES. Neither party can assign this Agreement without the 
other party’s prior written permission. 

C. Notwithstanding any other term in this Agreement, VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES 
shall not control or be responsible for another party’s means, methods, techniques, 
schedules, sequences or procedures, or for construction safety or any other related 
programs. 

D. Client agrees to indemnify, defend and hold VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES, its agents 
and employees harmless from and against any and all claims, liabilities, suits, 
demands, losses, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) to 
property or persons, including injury or death, or economic losses, arising out of the 
Project and/or the performance or non-performance of obligations under this 
Agreement, except to the extent such damages or losses are directly caused by 
VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES’ gross negligence or willful misconduct.  

E. In the event that any suit or action is instituted to enforce any provision in this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in such dispute shall be entitled to recover from the 
losing party all fees (including legal and accounting fees), costs and expenses of 
enforcing any right of such prevailing party under or with respect to this Agreement, 
including without limitation, all costs of appeals. For purposes of this provision, 
“prevailing party” shall include a party that dismisses an action in exchange for 
payment of the sum allegedly due, performance of covenants allegedly breached, or 
consideration substantially equal to the relief sought in the action or proceeding. 

F. VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES reserves the right to include representations of the 
Project in its promotional and professional materials. 

G. All Services performed pursuant to the Agreement are performed on an “as is” basis, 
and VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES hereby disclaims all warranties, express or implied, 
including, but not limited to, fitness for a particular purpose and non-infringement. 
In no event shall VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES be liable to Client or any third party 
for any losses, lost profits, lost data, consequential, special, incidental, or punitive 



VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES     City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 9 

damages, delays, or interruptions arising out of or related to this Agreement 
regardless of the basis of the claim. VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES’ aggregate liability 
(including attorneys’ fees) to Client and Client’s exclusive remedy, if any, shall not 
exceed the lesser of the (i) amount of fees actually paid to VANDEWALLE & 

ASSOCIATES by Client with regard to the Services or the Work Order for which 
liability has been asserted, or (ii) amount of fees actually paid to VANDEWALLE & 

ASSOCIATES by Client in the previous two months prior to the claim being made. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto entered into this Agreement as of the latest date 
noted, below. 

 City of Lake Geneva 

By: 
 
 Signature of Authorized Representative Date 

 

 

 Printed Name Title 

 VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

By: 
 
 Nonna Anderson, Business Manager Date 



VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES     City of Lake Geneva/Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis 

June 11, 2019 10 

ATTACHMENT ONE 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 
Hourly Rates 
 

Company President   $220 to $250 

Principal  $185 to $220 

Associate    $95 to $120 

Assistant  $75 to $95 

GIS Analyst/Cartographer  $85 to $95 

Communications Specialist      $65 to $120 

Project Assistant   $40 to $65 
 


	1. June 17 2019 Agenda
	3. May 20 2019 Plan Commission Minutes Pending
	6.a. 832 Geneva St Downtown Design
	6.b. 512 Broad St Downtown Design
	6.c. 772 W Main St Downtown Design
	6.d. 235 Broad St Downtown Design
	7. 100 N Edwards Blvd CUP
	8. 617 W Main St CUP
	9. 1550 Lake Shore Dr CUP
	10. 700 S Lake Shore Dr CUP
	11. 695 Wells St CUP
	12. 846 Madison St  CUP
	13. 406 Wells St PIP
	14. Vistas of Lake Geneva
	15. Changeable Message Sign Timing
	16. Ice Castles
	17. Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment
	18. Lake Geneva - Hillmoor Property Feasibility Analysis - Contract



